Public Document Pack

CONSTITUTION

Tuesday, 7th August, 2018
3.16 pm




CONSTITUTION

.gov.uk Tuesday, 7th August, 2018 at 3.16 pm

AGENDA

1) Index

a) Part1 Summary and Explanation
2) Part 2 Articles

3) Part 3 Scheme of Delegation Council and Executive Functions
4) Part 4

a) Council Procedure Rules

b) Access to Information Procedure Rules

c) Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules
d) Executive Procedure Rules

e) Scrutiny Procedure Rules

f)  Financial Procedure Rules

g) Contracts Procedure Rules

h)  Officer Employment Procedure Rules

i) Officer Disciplinary Procedure Rules

a) Code of Conduct for Members

b) Code of Conduct for Employees

c) Protocol for Chief Executive, Directors and Political Groups
d) Council's Petition Scheme

e) Appointment of Mayor and Deputy Mayor Elect

f)  Protocol for Scrutiny Call-in Procedure

g) Guidance for Councillors and Officers involved in Outside
Organisations

h) Local Code for Corporate Governance

i)  Protocol for Awards to Recognise Service to the Council or the
Community

j)  Protocol Members of Standards Committee or Sub Committees

5-8

9-18
19 -48

49 - 152

153 -170
171 -182
183 - 188
189 - 192
193 - 200
201 - 240
241 - 264
265 - 266
267 - 270

271 - 330
331 - 356
357 - 358
359 - 364
365 - 366
367 - 368
369 - 406

407 - 410
411 - 414

415 -420

Constitution DATE - 7-08-18 Page 2 of 3



k) Protocol for Monitoring Officer 421 - 426

I) Recording and use of Social Media at Council and Other 427 - 430
meetings open to the public

m) Protocol for Chief Finance (Section 151) Officer 431 - 436

6) Part 6 Members Allowance Scheme 437 - 440

7) Part 7 Management Team Structure -updated 441 - 442

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEE

PUBLISHED 7t August 2018

Constitution DATE - 7-08-18 Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank



The Council's constitution

Part 1 — Summary and Explanation

Part 2 — Articles of the Constitution

Article 1-

Article 2-

Article 3-

Article 4-

Article 5-

Article 6-

Article 7-

Article 8-

Article 9-

Article 10-

Article 11-

Article 12-

Article 13-

Article 14-

Article 15-

Article 16-

The Constitution

Members of the Council

Citizens and the Council

The Full Council

Chairing the Council

Scrutiny Committee

The Executive

Regulatory and other Committees
The Standards Committee

Area Structures

Joint Arrangements

Officers

Decision Making

Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters
Review and Revision of the Constitution

Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the Constitution

Page 5

Agenda ltem 1


http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/Part%201%20Summary%20and%20Explanation%20Oct%202014.doc
file://sharepoint/DavWWWRoot/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/Part%202%20Articles%20ED%20200418.docx

Schedule 1- Description of Executive

Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions

Responsibility for Functions -Scheme of Delegation for Council and Executive Functions

Part 4 — Rules of Procedure

4.1- The Council's Procedure Rules

4.2- Access to Information Procedure Rules

4.3- Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules

4.4- Executive Procedure Rules

4.5- Scrutiny Procedure Rules

4.6- Financial Procedure Rules

4.7- Contracts Procedure Rules

4.8- IE_IJOfﬁcer Employment Procedure Rules February 2018

4.9- Officer Disciplinary Procedure Rules

Part 5 — Codes and Protocols

5.1 New Code of Conduct for Members and Guidance

Page 6


file://sharepoint/DavWWWRoot/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/Part%203%20%20Council%20Func%20and%20Exec%20Func%20updated%20ED%20200418.docx
file://sharepoint/DavWWWRoot/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/Part%204.1%20Council%20Procedure%20Rules%2020%20April%202018.docx
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%204.2%20Access%20to%20Information%20Rules%20v4%20181212.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%204.3%20Budget%20and%20Policy%20Framework%20Procedure%20Rules.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/Part%204.4%20Executive%20Procedure%20Rules%2011%20Sept%202012.docx
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%204.5%20Scrutiny%20Procedure%20Rules%20June%202014.doc
file://sharepoint/DavWWWRoot/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%204.6%20%20v2.08%20ED%20300117%20minor%20LP%20270117%20Financial%20Procedure%20Rules.doc
file://sharepoint/DavWWWRoot/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%204.7%20V9.0%20CLEAN%20Standing%20Orders%20for%20Contracts.doc%20ED%20130217%20v2.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/SiteAssets/SitePages/Constitution/Officer%20Employment%20Procedure%20Rules%20January%202015%20draft%20(3)%20ED%20300115.doc
file://sharepoint/DavWWWRoot/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/Part%204.8%20Officer%20Employment%20Procedure%20Rules%2021%20February%202018.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%204.9%20Officer%20Disciplinary%20Procedure%20Rules%20for%20JNC%20Officers%20August%202015.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.1%20%20Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20Members%20and%20Guidance.doc

5.2-

5.3-

5.5-

5.6-

5.7-

5.8-

5.9-

5.10-

5.11-

5.12-

Code of Conduct for Employees, Whistleblowing Policy and Anti Fraud/Corruption Policy

Protocol: Chief Executive/Chief Operating Officer and Political Groups

Protocol: Petitions

Protocol: Appointment of Mayor/Deputy Mayor

Protocol: Call-in

Guidance:Member and Officer Appointments to Outside Organisations and requirement to

declare related party transactions

Local Code of Corporate Governance

Protocol: Recognition of Service to the Community and Council

Protocol: Audit and Standards Committee Members

Protocol: Monitoring Officer

Protocol: Section 151 Officer

5.13- Recording and Use of Social Media

Part 6 — Members’ Allowances Scheme

2014/15 Members Allowances Scheme

Part 7 — Management Structure

Management Structure

Page 7


http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.2%20Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20Employees%202014%20Final%20010814.doc
file://sharepoint/DavWWWRoot/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.3%20Protocol%20for%20Chief%20Executive,%20Chief%20Operating%20Officer%20and%20Political%20Groups%20Dec%202009.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.4%20Council%27s%20Petition%20Scheme.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.5%20Apppintment%20of%20Mayor%20and%20Deputy%20Mayor%20Elect%20Dec%202009.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.6%20Protocol%20for%20Scrutiny%20Call-in%20Procedure%20Sept%202010.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.7%20Guidance%20for%20Councillors%20and%20Officers%20involved%20in%20Outside%20Organisations%20Feb%202010.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.7%20Guidance%20for%20Councillors%20and%20Officers%20involved%20in%20Outside%20Organisations%20Feb%202010.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.8%20Local%20Code%20for%20Corporate%20Governance.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.9%20Protocol%20for%20Awards%20to%20Recognise%20Service%20to%20the%20Community%20or%20the%20Council.doc
file://sharepoint/DavWWWRoot/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.10%20Protocol%20Members%20of%20Audit%20and%20Standards%20Committee%20and%20Sub%20Committees.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.11%20Protocol%20for%20the%20Monitoring%20Officer.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.12%20Protocol%20for%20the%20Chief%20Finance%20(Section%20151)%20Officer.doc
file://sharepoint/DavWWWRoot/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%205.13%20-%20Recording%20and%20use%20of%20Social%20Media%20at%20Council%20and%20other%20meetings%20open%20to%20the%20Public.docx
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/part%206%20Members%20Allowance%20Scheme%202014-16.%20July%202014.doc
http://sharepoint/CEO/Democracy/Constitution/Part%207-Management%20structure%20December%202015.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



October 2014

Part 1 - Summary and Explanation

BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL

PART 1
o
Q
«Q
@D
o) SUMMARY AND
EXPLANATION

eT wal epuaby



October 2014

0T abed

The Council's Constitution

Burnley Borough Council has agreed a constitution which sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the procedures which are
followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. Some of these processes are required by the law, while
others are a matter for the Council to choose.

The Constitution is divided into 16 articles which set out the basic rules governing the Council’s business. More detailed procedures and codes of
practice are provided in separate rules and protocols at the end of the document.

What’s in the Constitution?

Article 1 of the Constitution commits the Council to represent the wider community as well as individual citizens, improve services and to operate in
an efficient, transparent and accountable manner. Articles 2 — 16 explain the rights of citizens and how the key parts of the Council operate. These
are:

e Members of the Council



October 2014

e Citizens and the Council

e The Council meeting

e Chairing the Council.

e Scrutiny of decisions

e The Executive

¢ Regulatory and other committees
e The Audit and Standards Committee
e Area Structures

e Joint arrangements

0 _

g Officers

Decision making

“T1%

Finance, contracts and legal matters

Review and revision of the Constitution

Suspension, interpretation and publication of the Constitution

e Codes of Conduct and Protocols

How the Council operates

The Council is composed of 45 Members elected for four years with one-third elected three years in four. Members are democratically accountable
to residents of their ward. The overriding duty of Members is to the whole community, but they have a special duty to their constituents, including
those who did not vote for them.



October 2014

Members have to agree to follow a code of conduct to ensure high standards in the way they undertake their duties. The Audit and Standards
Committee trains and advises them on the code of conduct.

All Members meet together as the Council. Meetings of the Council are normally open to the public. Here Members decide the Council’s overall
policies and set the budget each year. The Council elects the Leader of the Council who chairs the Executive. The Leader appoints the other
members of the Executive.. In addition all Committees are appointed by the Council including their Chairs and Vice Chairs. Although most decisions
of the Executive and Regulatory Committees will be taken with delegated powers and will not need the approval of the Council all business
transacted by the Executive or Committees will be subject to scrutiny at full Council meetings. Members of the public can ask to speak at the
Executive or Committee meetings on items indicated on the agenda, or at Council meetings on any issue affecting the Borough.

HOW DECISIONS ARE MADE

The Executive is the part of the Council, which is responsible for most day-to-day decisions. The Executive is made up of a Leader with Cabinet - the
total Number can be between 3 and 10. When major decisions are to be discussed or made, these are published in the Executive’s Notice of Key
Decisions and Private Part of Meeting in so far as they can be anticipated. If these major decisions are to be discussed with council officers at a

eting of the executive, this will generally be open for the public to attend except where personal or confidential matters are being discussed. The
axecutive has to make decisions, which are in line with the Council’s overall policies and budget. If it wishes to make a decision, which is outside the
@dget or policy framework, this must be referred to the Council as a whole to decide.

$GRUTINY

There is 1 Scrutiny Committee which supports the work of the Executive and the Council as a whole. It allows citizens to have a greater say in
Council matters by enquiring into matters of local concern. These lead to reports and recommendations which advise the Executive and the Council
as a whole on its policies, budget and service delivery. The Scrutiny Committee also monitors the decisions of the Executive. It can ‘call-in’ a
decision which has been made by the Executive but not yet implemented. This enables it to consider whether the decision is appropriate. It may
recommend that the Executive reconsider the decision. It may also be consulted by the Executive or the Council on forthcoming decisions and the
development of policy.

The Council’s Staff

The Council has people working for it (called ‘officers’) to give advice, implement decisions and manage the day-to-day delivery of its services. Some
officers have a specific duty to ensure that the Council acts within the law and uses its resources wisely. A code of practice governs the relationships
between officers and members of the council.

Citizens’ Rights



October 2014

Citizens have a number of rights in their dealings with the Council. Some of these are legal rights, whilst others depend on the Council’s own
processes. .

Where members of the public use specific council services, for example a sports centre, they may have additional rights. These are not covered in
this Constitution.

Citizens have the right to vote at local elections if they are registered;

e contact their local Member about any matters of concern to them;

e obtain a copy of the Constitution;

e attend meetings of the Council and its committees except where, for example, personal or confidential matters are being discussed;
e petition to request a referendum on a mayoral form of executive;

if invited, participate in the Council’'s question time and contribute to investigations by the scrutiny committees

find out, from the Executive’s Notice of Key Decisions and Private Part of Meeting, what major decisions are to be discussed by the executive or
ecided by the Executive or officers, and when;

&1 abed °

attend meetings of the Executive where key decisions are being discussed or decided;

e see reports and background papers, and any record of decisions made by the Council and Executive;

complain to the Council. The Council has a complaints procedure set out in booklets available from reception points in main Council buildings.

complain to the Ombudsman if they think the Council has not followed its procedures properly. However, they should only do this after using the
Council’'s own complaints process;

e complain to the Council’s Monitoring Officer if they have evidence which they think shows that a councillor has not followed the Council’s Code of
Conduct; and

e inspect the Council’'s accounts and make their views known to the external auditor.

The Council welcomes participation by its citizens in its work. For further information on your rights as a citizen, please contact :



October 2014

Your local Member, or:
Democracy Unit

Burnley Borough Council

Town Hall

Manchester Road

Burnley

Lancashire

BB11 1JA

Tel: (01282) 425011

E-mail: enquiries@burnley.gov.uk

T abed


mailto:enquiries@burnley.gov.uk

October 2014

BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL COMMITTEE STRUCTURE
2017/8

FULL COUNCIL
(All 4 5 Members)
Decides Constitution

Policy Framework ;
Budget 1 Scrutiny

Appoints Leader Committee
Code of Conduct Appoints Chief Exec

Investigates alleged
breaches

Standards AND AUDIT
(9) -

2 Parish Council
representatives

I

e Any Service

Regulatory Committees
e Tpevelopment Control (16) 17 Members)
Q Develop policy
. icensing (15 Members) Review Efficiency
. HFuII delegated powers Review Executive decisions

Executive

Full delegated Powers
(4 Members)

Portfolio holders

. Leader

* Resources

Working Groups
. Community Services Ad hoc
Policy & Practice
. Economy&Growth ev development
Flexible, informal

. Deputy Leader

* Housing and Environment



October 2014

9T abed



October 2014

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 2

20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential

BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL

ARTICLES

OF THE CONSTITUTION

30 January 2017

Page 19



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
Article 1 — The Constitution

1.01 Powers of the Council

The Council will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with the law
and this Constitution.

1.02 The Constitution

This Constitution, and all its appendices, is the Constitution of Burnley
Borough Council.

1.03 Purpose of the Constitution
The purpose of the Constitution is to:

1. enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community in
partnership with citizens, businesses and other organisations;

2. support the active involvement of citizens in the process of local
authority decision-making;

3. help Members represent their constituents more effectively;

4. enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively having regard to

the law, appropriate policies, procedures and ethical standards;

5. create a powerful and effective means of holding decision-makers to
public account;

6. ensure that no one will review or scrutinise a decision in which they
were directly involved or had a personal or prejudicial interest in;

7. ensure that those responsible for decision making are clearly
identifiable to local people and that they explain the reasons for
decisions; and

8. provide a means of improving the delivery of services to the
community.
9. enable the Council to provide services to the community in an efficient,

effective and economical manner
1.04 Interpretation and Review of the Constitution

Where the Constitution and the law permits the Council to choose between
different courses of action, the Council will always choose that option which it
thinks is closest to the purposes stated above.

The Council will monitor and evaluate the operation of the Constitution as set out in
Article 15.

Page 20



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
Article 2 — Members of The Council

2.01

2.02

2.03

Composition and eligibility

(@) Composition. The Council comprises 45 Members, otherwise called
councillors. Three councillors are elected by the voters of each ward
in accordance with a scheme drawn up by the Local Government
Commission and approved by the Secretary of State.

(b) Eligibility. Only registered voters of the district or those living or
working in the district, as defined by election law, will be eligible to
hold the office of councillor.

Election and terms of Members
ELECTION BY THIRDS

Election and terms. The ordinary election of a third (or as near as may be)
of all councillors will be held on the first Thursday in May in each year unless
changed by Parliament starting in 2005 and every fourth year after there
will be no regular election to allow for County Council elections. The terms of
office of councillors will be four years starting on the fourth day after being
elected and finishing on the fourth day after the date of the regular election
four years later.

Roles and functions of all Members
(@) Key roles. All Members will:

(i) collectively be the ultimate policy-makers and carry out a number
of strategic and corporate management functions;

(i) contribute to the good governance of the Borough and actively
encourage community participation and citizen involvement in
decision making;

(iii) effectively represent the interests of their ward and of individual
constituents;

(iv) respond to constituents’ enquiries and representations, fairly and
impartially for the benefit of the Borough as a whole;

(v) participate in the governance and management of the Council;
(vi)maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics; and
(vii) be available to represent the Council on other bodies

(b) Rights and duties

(i) Members will have rights of access to documents, information,
land and buildings of the Council as are necessary for the proper
discharge of their functions and in accordance with the law.

(i) Members will not make public information which is confidential or
exempt under the Access to Information Rules without the consent
of Council

(iii) For these purposes, RR&@8eRthI" and "exempt" information are



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
defined in the Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this
Constitution.

2.04 Conduct

Members will at all times observe the Members’ Code of Conduct and the
Protocol on Member/Officer Relations set out in Part 5 of this Constitution.

2.05 Allowances

Members will be entitled to receive allowances in accordance with the
Members’ Allowances Scheme set out in Part 6 of this Constitution.

Page 22



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
Article 3 — Citizens and The Council

3.01

Citizens’ rights

Citizens have the following rights In relation to the business of the Council.
Their rights to information and to participate are explained in more detail in
the Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution:

(@)

(b)

Voting and petitions. Citizens on the electoral roll for the area have
the right to vote and sign a petition to request a referendum for an
elected mayor form of local governance.

Information. Citizens have the right to:

(i) attend meetings of the Council and its committees and any decision
making meeting of the Executive except where confidential or
exempt information is likely to be disclosed, and the meeting is
therefore held in private;

(ii) find out from the Notice of Key Decisions and Private Meetings plan
what key decisions will be taken by the executive and when;

(iif) see reports and background papers and any records of decisions
made by the Council and the Executive other than exempt or
confidential items;

(iv) inspect the Council’s accounts and make their views known to the
external auditor; and

(v) such other information as may be specified in the Council’s
Freedom of Information Act 2000 Publication Scheme

Participation. Citizens have the right to participate at Council,
Executive and Committee/Sub-Committee meetings’ question time and
contribute to investigations by scrutiny committees in accordance with
the procedures set out in Part 4 (Council Procedure Rules).

Complaints. Citizens have the right to complain to:
(i) the Council itself under its complaints scheme;

(ii) the Council’s Monitoring Officer in respect of any alleged unlawful or
illegal behaviour, action, inaction or decisions of Members and
Officers;

(iii) the Ombudsman after using the Council’s own complaints scheme;

(iv) the Council’s Monitoring Officer about a breach of the Member’s
Code of Conduct

(v) any other relevant regulatory or law enforcement agency

3.02 Citizens’ responsibilities

Citizens must obey the law and not be violent, abusive or threatening to
Members or officers and must not willfully harm things owned by the council,
Members or officers.

Citizens on the electoral roll should exercise their voting rights.

Page 23



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
Article 4 — The Full Council

4.01 Meanings

(@)

(c)

Policy Framework. The policy framework means the following plans
and strategies to be approved by the Full Council either as required by
law or decision of the Council:-

e Sustainable Community Strategy;
e Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy;
e Local Transport Plan;

¢ Plans and strategies which together comprise the Development
Plan;

e Council’s Strategic Plan;

e Food Law Enforcement Service Plan

e The Housing Strategy;

e Economic Vision Strategy

e Corporate Community Engagement Strategy

e Equal Opportunities Policy, Single Equality Scheme and Equality
Action Plan

e Statement of Licensing Policy regarding the Licensing Act 2003
e Statement of Principles regarding the Gambling Act 2005

e Matters related to local government pensions

e Data Protection and Freedom of Information Policy

e Pay Policy Statement - Localism Act 2011

Budget. The budget includes the allocation of financial resources to
different services and projects, proposed contingency funds, the
council tax base, setting the council tax and decisions relating to the
control of the Council’s borrowing requirement, the control of its capital
expenditure and the setting of virement limits.

Housing Land Transfer. Housing Land Transfer means the approval
or adoption of applications (whether in draft form or not) to the
Secretary of State for approval of a programme of disposal of 500 or
more properties to a person under the Leasehold Reform, Housing and
Urban Development Act 1993 or to dispose of land used for residential
purposes where approval is required under sections 32 or 43 of the
Housing Act 1985.

4.02 Functions reserved to the full Council

Only the Council will exercise the following functions:

(@)
(b)

(c)

adopting and approving changes to the Constitution or any that are
likely to have a significant impact;

approving or adopting the policy framework and the budget and any
application to the Secretary of State in respect of any Housing Land
Transfer;

subject to the urgency[%rﬁé?#%contained in the Access to
Information Procedure irPart 4 of this Constitution, making



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential

4.03

4.04

decisions about any matter in the discharge of an executive function
which is covered by the policy framework or the budget where the
decision maker is minded to make it in a manner which would be
contrary to the policy framework or contrary to/or not wholly in
accordance with the budget;

(d) appointing the Leader;

(e)  agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for committees,
deciding on their composition and making appointments to them;

(f) appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the appointment is
an executive function or has been delegated by the Council (see Part 3
of the Constitution — Local Choice Functions);

(g)  adopting an allowances scheme under Article 2.05;

(h)  changing the name of the area, conferring the title of honorary
alderman/alderwoman or freedom of the borough

(i) confirming the appointment of the head of paid service;

)] making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and
promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or Private Bills;

(k) all local choice functions set out in Part 3 of this Constitution which the
Council decides should be undertaken by itself rather than the
executive; and

()] all other matters which, by law, must be reserved to Council.
Council meetings

There are three types of Council meeting:

(@)  the annual meeting;

(b)  ordinary meetings;

(c) extraordinary meetings/special meetings.

and they will be conducted in accordance with the Council Procedure Rules in
Part 4 of this Constitution.

Responsibility for functions

The Council will maintain the tables in Part 3 of this Constitution setting out
the responsibilities for the Council’s functions which are not the responsibility
of the Executive.

Page 25



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
Article 5 — Chairing The Full Council

TITLE OF THE PERSON CHAIRING COUNCIL MEETINGS

5.01

Role and function of the Mayor

The Mayor will be elected by the Council annually. The Mayor and in his/her
absence the Deputy Mayor will have the following responsibilities:

(1)

(2)

to uphold and promote the Borough , its Constitution, and to give
rulings on the Constitution during Council meetings (when necessary
and following appropriate advice from relevant Officers);

to preside over meetings of the Council so that its business can be
carried out efficiently and with regard to the rights of Councillors and
the interests of the community;

to ensure that the Council meeting is a forum for the debate of matters
of concern to the local community and the place at which members
who are not on the executive are able to hold the executive and
committee chairs to account;

to promote public involvement in the Council’s activities;
to be an ambassador for the Borough; and

to attend such civic and ceremonial functions as the Council and
he/she determines appropriate

if necessary to chair meetings between the Leader and the Leaders of
all other political groups represented on the Council to plan for the
efficient transaction of the Council’s business.

Ceremonial role

In this role the Mayor, as the first citizen of Burnley, during his/her term of
office, must uphold and preserve the dignity and honour bestowed upon
him/her during the term of his/her office and take extra care to ensure that the
office of Mayor and the Council are not brought into disrepute. In particular the
Mayor must remain apolitical during his/her term of office and avoid taking or
making decisions that may be seen by a reasonable person to be politically
motivated.

Burnley Borough Council’s Code of Conduct for Members applies to the Mayor
and the Deputy Mayor.

Page 26



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
Article 6 — Scrutiny Committees

SCRUTINY

6.01

6.02

6.03

Terms of reference

The Council will appoint the scrutiny committee set out in the left hand
column of the table below to discharge the functions conferred by section 21
of the Local Government Act 2000 or regulations [proposed] under section
32 of the Local Government Act 2000 in relation to the matters set out in the
right hand column of the same table.

Committee Scope
(From May 2014)
Scrutiny Committee To Scrutinise all actions which fall within the

remit of any Service Unit or the Chief
Executive and Chief Operating Officer.

General role

Within their terms of reference, scrutiny committees will:

i)

review and/or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in
connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions;

make reports and/or recommendations to the full Council and/or the
executive and/or any committee in connection with the discharge of
any functions;

consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants; and

exercise the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but
not yet implemented by the executive

Specific functions

(@)

(b)

Policy development and review —scrutiny committees may:

i) assist the Council and the Executive in the development of its
budget and policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues;

ii) conduct research, community and other consultation in the
analysis of policy issues and possible options;

iii) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance
community participation in the development of policy options;

iv) question members of the Executive and/or committees,
Management Team and Service Managers about their views on
issues and proposals affecting the policy area; and

v) liaise with other external organisations operating in the policy area,
whether national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of
local people are enhanced by collaborative working.

Scrutiny- the scrutiny committee may:

i) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of
the Executive and/or committees and council officers both in
relation to individual qzag@'@ngqnd over time;



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential

(c)
(d)

i)

ii)

review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to
its policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular service

areas;

question members of the Executive and Regulatory committees,
Management Team and Service Managers about their decisions
and performance, whether generally in comparison with service
plans and targets over a period of time, or in relation to particular
decisions, initiatives or projects. Other officers will only attend with
the consent of the appropriate Service Manager (not to be
unreasonably withheld);

make recommendations to the Executive and/or appropriate
committee and/or Council arising from the outcome of the scrutiny
process including addressing any consequential financial
implications;

review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the
area and invite reports from them by requesting them to address
the scrutiny committee and local people about their activities and
performance, including the statutory requirement to scrutinize the
Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership by a designated
Scrutiny committee at least once a year i.e. the Scrutiny
Committee; and

vi) question and gather evidence from any person (with their

consent).

Finance- the scrutiny committee may exercise overall responsibility
for any finances which may be made available to it.

Annual report- the scrutiny committee must report annually to full
Council on its workings and make recommendations for future work
programmes and amended working methods if appropriate.

6.04 Proceedings of scrutiny committees

The Scrutiny committee will conduct its proceedings in accordance with the
Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.

Page 28



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
Article 7 — The Executive

THE ROLE OF THE EXECUTIVE

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

Role

The Executive will carry out all the local authority’s functions which are not
the responsibility of any other part of the local authority, whether by law or
under the Constitution.

Form and Composition
LEADER APPOINTS EXECUTIVE

The Executive will consist of the Executive Leader together with at least 2,
but not more than 9, Members appointed to the Executive by the Leader
(one of whom will be appointed by the Leader to act as the Deputy Leader).

Leader

The Leader will be a Member elected to the position of leader by the Council.
The Leader’s term of office will end on the day when the Council holds its
first Appointment Council Meeting after the Leader’s normal day of
retirement as a Member, unless:

(@)  he/she resigns from the office; or

(b)  he/she is suspended from being a councillor under Part Ill of the Local
Government Act 2000 (although he/she may resume office at the end
of the period of suspension); or

(c) he/she is no longer a Member; or

(d)  he/she is removed by resolution of Council provided that no such
resolution may be moved unless a Notice of Motion is delivered to the
Head of Governance, Law, Property & Regulation not later than 7
days before the meeting at which it is to be debated, and signed by
one third of the Members (for the time being) of the Council (which will
also meet signing requirements in Part 4.1 Council Procedure Rule
15 Previous Decisions and Motions), and that this particular Motion
be exempt from Council Procedure Rule 22 relating to waiving of
Standing Orders

Deputy Leader

(@) The Leader will appoint one of the Members of the Executive to act as
Deputy Leader. The Leader must give written notice of such appointment to
both the person who he/she is appointing as Deputy Leader and the Head of
Legal and Democratic Services. The appointment of the Deputy Leader will
take effect on receipt of the Leader’s written notice by both the person who
the Leader is appointing as Deputy Leader and the Head of Legal and
Democratic Services. The Head of Legal and Democratic Services will keep
a written record of the appointment of the Deputy Leader, and the Leader will
report the appointment to Council and the Executive at the earliest
opportunity.

(b) The Deputy Leader will hoIdI@ﬁg-:euQ@the end of the Leader’s term of



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential

7.05

office unless;
(i) he/she resigns from the office; or

(ii) he/she is suspended from being a Member under Part Il of the Local
Government Act 2000 (although he/she may resume office at the end
of the period of suspension); or

(i)  he/she is no longer a Member; or
(iv)  he/she is no longer a member of the Executive; or

(v)  he/she is removed by the Leader who must give written notice of
such removal to both the Deputy Leader and the Head of
Governance, Law, Property & Regulation. The removal of the Deputy
Leader will take effect on receipt of the Leader’s written notice by both
the Deputy Leader and the Head of Governance, Law, Property &
Regulation. The Head of Governance, Law, Property & Regulation will
keep a written record of any removal of the Deputy Leader, and the
Leader will report any such removal of the Deputy Leader to Council
and the Executive at the earliest opportunity.

( ¢) Where a vacancy occurs in the office of Deputy Leader, the Leader must
appoint another person in his/her place. The Leader must give written notice
of such appointment to both the person who he/she is appointing as Deputy
Leader and the Head of Legal and Democratic Services.. The appointment of
the Deputy Leader will take effect on receipt of the Leader’s written notice by
both the person who the Leader is appointing as Deputy Leader and the
Head of Legal and Democratic Services. The Head of Legal and Democratic
Services will keep a written record of the appointment of the Deputy Leader,
and the Leader will report the appointment to Council and the Executive at
the earliest opportunity

(d) If for any reason:

(i) The Leader is unable to act or the Office of Leader is vacant, the Deputy
Leader will act in his/her place; and

(ii) The Deputy Leader is unable to act or the Office of Deputy Leader is
vacant, the Executive must act in the Leader’s place, or arrange for an
Executive Member to act in his/her place

Other Executive members

In addition to the Deputy Leader, the Leader will appoint between 1 and 8
further Executive Members to hold such portfolios as the Leader shall
determine. When appointing an Executive Member the Leader must give
written notice of such appointment and of the Portfolio to both the person
who he/she is appointing as an Executive Member and the Head of Legal
and Democratic Services.. The appointment of the Executive Member will
take effect on receipt of the Leader’s written notice by both the person who
the Leader is appointing as an Executive Member and the Head of Legal and
Democratic Services. The Head of Legal and Democratic Services will keep
a written record of the appointment of an Executive Member, and the Leader
will report the appointment of an Executive Member to Council and the
Executive at the earliest opportunity.

An Executive Member shall hpj%_@fgcgentil the end of the Leader’s term of
office unless:



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential

7.06

7.07

7.08

(@)  he /she resigns from office; or

(b)  he/she is suspended from being a Member under Part IIl of the Local
Government Act 2000 (although he/she may resume office at the end
of the period of suspension); or

(c) he/she is no longer a Member; or

(d) he/she is removed by the Leader who must give written notice of such
removal to both the Executive Member and the Head of Legal and
Democratic Services.. The removal of an Executive Member will take
effect on receipt of the Leader’s written notice by both the Executive
Member and the Head of Legal and Democratic Services.. The Head
of Legal and Democratic Services will keep a written record of any
removal of an Executive Member, and the Leader will report any such
removal of the Executive Member to Council and the Executive at the
earliest opportunity.

Remits of Executive Members

Within the above framework and any statutory requirements, the Leader will
determine the detailed remits of Executive Members (including the Deputy
Leader) and report such detailed remits (and any changes thereto) to the
Executive Members concerned, the Head of Legal and Democratic Services,
Council and the Executive at the earliest opportunity.

Proceedings of the Executive

Proceedings of the Executive shall take place in accordance with the
Executive Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.

Responsibility for functions

(a) Until the Appointments Council in 2011 the Leader will maintain a list in
Part 3 of this Constitution setting out which individual Members of the
Executive, committees of the Executive, officers or joint arrangements are
responsible for the exercise of particular Executive functions.

(b) From the Appointments Council in 2011 the Leader may determine to
exercise any of the Executive functions of the Council personally,, or may
arrange for the exercise of any of the Council’s Executive functions by:

(i) the Executive

(i) by another Member of the Executive

(i) by a Committee of the Executive

(iv) by an Officer of the Council or joint arrangements

(c ) The Head of Legal and Democratic Services will maintain a Register of
the Delegation of Executive Functions and will record any alterations to the
allocation of responsibility for the discharge of Executive functions.

(d) At the earliest opportunity following the election of a Leader, the Leader
will review the allocation of responsibilities for the discharge of Executive
functions recorded in Part 3 of this Constitution. Any alterations that the
Leader wishes to make to the allocation of responsibility for the discharge of
Executive functions will be deal‘:yvéra #1 g(icordance with Executive Procedure
Rule 1.4 in Part 4.4 of the Constit



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential

Article 8 — Regulatory and other committees

8.01 Regulatory and other committees

The Council will appoint the committees set out in the left hand column of the
table Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of this Constitution to
discharge the functions described in column 3 of that table.

e Development Control
e Licensing

e Appeals

e Audit and Standards

Page 32



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
Article 9 - The Audit and Standards Committee

9.01

9.02

b)

d)

9.03

Audit and Standards Committee
The Council has established an Audit and Standards Committee
Membership

The Audit and Standards Committee will comprise nine Councillors as
Members, as well as 2 co-opted independent members and 2 co-opted parish
members.

The nine Members to be appointed by Council.
The external members to be approved by a majority of the Council.
The Committee to be Chaired by a Member.

Role and Functions relating to Audit and Standards

That the terms of reference of the Committee are-

To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members, Co-opted
Members and employees of the Council

To support Members, Co-opted members and employees to observe the
Council’s Code of Conduct

To advise, train or arrange to train Members, Co-opted Members, Parish and
Town Council Members and employees of the Council on the Council’'s Codes

To monitor and advise the Council about the operation of its Code of Conduct
for Members and Employees in light of best practice, changes in the law, and
government guidance

To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Codes of Conduct,
including the adoption of Protocols which support high standards of conduct
by Members and employees of the Council

To actively engage with the Borough, Parish and Town Councils on the role
and purpose of the Committee, governance and standards

To actively engage with the public, the media and key partners on the role
and purpose of the Committee, governance and standards to promote public
confidence in the Council

To grant dispensations to Members with disclosable interests
To grant exemptions for politically restricted posts

To determine complaints about Members in accordance with the Localism Act
2011 and associated Regulations and local procedures

To adopt and keep under review policies and procedures for the
determination of complaints abd0E\@&mBers



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
e To have oversight of the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy

Page 34



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
Article 10— Area Structures

Details to be inserted when agreed by the Council.

Page 35



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
Article 11 — Joint Arrangements

11.01 Arrangements to promote well being

The Council or the Executive, in order to promote the economic, social or
environmental well-being of its area, may:

(@)
(b)

(c)

enter into arrangements or agreements with any person or body;

co-operate with, or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of, any person
or body; and

exercise on behalf of that person or body any functions of that person
or body.

11.02 Joint arrangements

(@)

(e)

The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more local
authorities and/or their Executives to exercise functions which are not
executive functions in any of the participating authorities, or advise the
Council. Such arrangements may involve the appointment of a joint
committee with these other local authorities.

The Executive may establish joint arrangements with one or more
local authorities to exercise functions which are executive functions.
Such arrangements may involve the appointment of joint committees
with these other local authorities.

Except as set out below, the Executive may only appoint Executive
members to a joint committee and those members need not reflect the
political composition of the local authority as a whole.

The Executive may appoint Members to a joint committee from
outside the Executive in the following circumstances:

e the joint committee has functions for only part of the area of the
authority, and that area is smaller than two-fifths of the authority by
area or population. In such cases, the Executive may appoint to
the joint committee any Member who is a Member for a ward
which is wholly or partly contained within the area;

The political balance requirements do not apply to such appointments.

Details of any joint arrangements including any delegations to joint
committees will be found in the Council’s scheme of delegations in
Part 3 of this Constitution.

11.03 Access to information

(@)
(b)

(c)

The Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution apply.

If all the Members of a joint committee are Members of the Executive
in each of the participating authorities then its access to information
regime is the same as that applied to the Executive.

If the joint committee contains Members who are not on the Executive
of any participating authority then the access to information rules in
Part VA of the Local Government Act 1972 will apply.

11.04 Delegation to and from other local authorities

(@)

The Council may delega?e%%n‘?’I:Bxecutive functions to another local



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
authority or, in certain circumstances, the executive of another local
authority.

(b)  The executive may delegate Executive functions to another local
authority or the Executive of another local authority in certain
circumstances.

(c)  The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from another
local authority shall be reserved to the Council meeting.

11.05 Contracting out

The Council, for functions which are not Executive functions, or the
Executive may contract out to another body or organisation functions which
may be exercised by an officer and which are subject to an order under
section 70 of the Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 1994, or under
contracting arrangements where the contractor acts as the Council’s agent
under usual contracting principles, provided there is no delegation of the
Council’s discretionary decision making.

Page 37



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential
Article 12 — Officers

TERMINOLOGY
12.01 Management structure

(@) General. The full Council may engage staff (referred to as officers) as
it considers necessary to carry out its functions.

(b) Chief Officers. The full Council will engage people for the following
posts, who will be designated chief officers:

Post Functions and areas of responsibility
1. Chief Overall corporate management and operational
Executive responsibility (including overall management

responsibility for all officers)

Undertake the duties associated with the
statutory role of Head of Paid Service (see
12.02 below)

Provision of professional advice to all parties in
the decision making process.

Together with the monitoring officer,
responsibility for a system of record keeping for
all the Council’s decisions.

Representing the Council on partnership and
external bodies (as required by statute or the
Council).

Oversee the activities of the following Service
Unit or Team:

e Economy and Growth

e Policy and Engagement

Post Functions and areas of responsibility

2. Chief Provision of professional advice to all parties in
Operating Officer | the decision making process.

Contribute to the overall corporate management
and operational responsibility and offer corporate
advice and personal leadership to specific tasks
and projects

Representing the Council on partnership and
external bodies (as required by statute or the

CouncilPage 38




20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential

Oversee the activities of the following Service
Units:

e Green Space & Amenities

e Streetscene

e Housing & Development Control
e Revenues and Benefits (Liberata)
e Finance and Property

e Legal and Democratic Services
e People & Development

e Customer and IT Services (Liberata)

(c) Head of paid service, monitoring officer and chief financial
officer. The Council will designate the following posts as shown:

Post Statutory Designation

Chief Executive Head of Paid Service

Chief Operating . ,
Officer Monitoring Officer

Chief Finance Officer - Undertake the duties
Head of Finance | associated with the statutory role of Chief
and Property Finance Officer (see 12.04 below)

These posts will have the functions described in Article 12.02—-12.04
below.

(d) Structure. The head of paid service will determine and publicise a
description of the overall structure of the Council showing the
management structure and deployment of officers. This is set out at Part
7 of this Constitution.

12.02 Functions of the head of paid service

(@) Discharge of functions by the Council. The head of paid service will
report to full Council on the manner in which the discharge of the
Council’s functions is co-ardinated, the number and grade of officers
required for the dischargg&%gtigns and the organisation of officers,



20 April 2018 ED/LP Consequential

(b)

(c)

and the appointment and proper management of Officers

Protocols. The head of paid service’s activities will be in accordance
with the relevant legislation and the Protocol set out in Part 5 of this
constitution consistent with that legislation

Restrictions on functions. The head of paid service may not be the
monitoring officer but may hold the post of chief finance officer if a
qualified accountant.

12.03 Functions of the monitoring officer

(@)

(b)

(c)

(9)

h)

(i)
()

Maintaining the Constitution. The monitoring officer will maintain an
up-to-date version of the Constitution and will ensure that it is widely
available for consultation by Members, staff and the public.

Ensuring lawfulness and fairness of decision making. After
consulting with the head of paid service and chief finance officer, the
monitoring officer will report to the full Council, or to the executive in
relation to an executive function, if he or she considers that any
proposal, decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness or if
any decision or omission has given rise to maladministration. Such a
report will have the effect of stopping the proposal or decision being
implemented until the report has been considered.

Supporting the Audit and Standards Committee. The monitoring
officer will contribute to the promotion and maintenance of high
standards of conduct through provision of support to the Audit and
Standards Committee.

Receiving reports. The monitoring officer will receive and act on
reports made by ethical standards officers and decisions of the case
tribunals.

Conducting investigations. The monitoring officer will conduct
investigations into matters referred by ethical standards officers and
make reports or recommendations in respect of them to the Audit and
Standards Committee.

Proper officer for access to information. The monitoring officer will
ensure that executive decisions, together with the reasons for those
decisions and relevant officer reports and background papers are
made publicly available as soon as possible.

Advising whether Executive decisions are within the budget and
policy framework. The monitoring officer will advise whether
decisions of the executive are in accordance with the budget and
policy framework.

Providing advice. The monitoring officer will provide advice on the
scope of powers and authority to take decisions, maladministration,
financial impropriety, probity and budget and policy framework issues
to all councillors.

Restrictions on p<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>